NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting: PLANNING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

Date and Time: WEDNESDAY, 8 JUNE 2016, AT 9.00 AM*

Place: THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, APPLETREE COURT,
LYNDHURST

Telephone enquiries to: Lyndhurst (023) 8028 5000

023 8028 5588 - ask for Jan Debnam
E-mail jan.debnam@nfdc.gov.uk

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

*Members of the public are entitled to speak on individual items on the public agenda
in accordance with the Council's public participation scheme. To register to speak
please contact Development Control Administration on Tel: 02380 285345 or E-mail:
DCAdministration@nfdc.gov.uk

Bob Jackson
Chief Executive

Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA
www.newforest.gov.uk

This Agenda is also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format

AGENDA

Apologies

1. MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 11 and 16 May 2016 as correct
records.

2, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an
agenda item. The nature of the interest must also be specified.

Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services
prior to the meeting.



PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR COMMITTEE DECISION
To determine the applications set out below:

(a) The Old Railway Station, Woodgreen Road, Breamore (Application
16/10231) (Pages 1 - 10)

Use as holiday let (amended reason to advertise)
RECOMMENDED:
Planning consent subject to conditions

(b) 124 Station Road, Fordingbridge (Application 16/10291) (Pages 11 - 18)

Two-storey side and rear extension to provide 2 additional flats; bin/cycle
stores

RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

(c) 28 Flushards, Lymington (Application 16/10358) (Pages 19 - 26)

Two-storey side extension with balcony; single-storey rear extension; roof
lights; new driveway and access

RECOMMENDED:
Planning consent subject to conditions

(d) 6 Highfield Avenue, Ringwood (Application 16/10360) (Pages 27 - 32)

Raise ridge height in association with new first floor; two-storey front and rear
extensions; solar panels

RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

(e) 149 Hightown Road, Ringwood (Application 16/10364) (Pages 33 - 42)
2 houses; access; parking; demolition of existing

RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

() 17 Christchurch Bay Road, Barton-on-Sea, New Milton (Application
16/10378) (Pages 43 - 48)

Rear conservatory
RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions



(9)

(h)

(i)

Land at Roeshot & Burton, Hinton, Bransgore (Application 16/10443)
(Pages 49 - 60)

Use of land as Natural Green Space (SANG)
RECOMMENDED:

Planning consent subject to conditions

Forest Lodge Home Farm, Fawley Road, Hythe (Application 16/10450)
(Pages 61 - 66)

Extraction of soft sand and sharp sand and gravel, the construction of an
improved access onto Fawley Road, the importation of inert materials and
restoration of the site to agriculture

RECOMMENDED:

Raise no objection

1 Farm Lane South, Barton-on-Sea, New Milton (Application 16/10476)

(Pages 67 - 72)

Single-storey side extension; front porch; fenestration alteration

RECOMMENDED:

Refuse

4, ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

To:

Councillors:

Mrs D E Andrews (Chairman)
P J Armstrong

Mrs S M Bennison

Mrs F Carpenter

A H G Davis

R L Frampton

L E Harris

D Harrison

Mrs A J Hoare

Mrs M D Holding

Councillors:

J M QOlliff-Cooper

A K Penson

W S Rippon-Swaine

Mrs A M Rostand

Miss A Sevier

M H Thierry

R A Wappet

Mrs C V Ward (Vice-Chairman)
M L White

Mrs P A Wyeth



STATUTORY TESTS

Introduction

In making a decision to approve or refuse planning applications, or applications for listed
building consent, conservation area consent and other types of consent, the decision maker
is required by law to have regard to certain matters.

The most commonly used statutory tests are set out below. The list is not exhaustive. In

reaching its decisions on the applications in this agenda, the Committee is obliged to take
account of the relevant statutory tests.

The Development Plan

The Development Plan Section 38

The Development Plan comprises the local development plan documents (taken as a whole)
which have been adopted or approved in relation to that area.

If regard is to be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any determination to be

made the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Listed Buildings

Section 66 General duty as respects listed buildings in exercise of planning functions.
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed
building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of
State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or
any features or special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

Conservation Areas

Section 72 General duty as respects conservation areas in exercise of planning functions
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

(1) In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, of any
powers under any of the provisions mentioned in subsection (2), special attention shall be
paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.

(2) The provisions referred to in subsection (1) are the Planning Acts and Part 1 of the
Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953.



Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB’s)

Section 85. General duty as respects AONB'’s in exercise of any function
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000

In exercising or performing any functions in relation to, or so as to affect, land in an area of
outstanding natural beauty, a relevant authority shall have regard to the purpose of
conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the area of outstanding natural beauty.

Trees

Section 197. Trees
Town and Country Planning Act 1990

It shall be the duty of the local planning authority (a) to ensure, whenever it is appropriate,
that in granting planning permission for any development adequate provision is made, by the
imposition of conditions, for the preservation or planting of trees; and (b) to make such
orders under section 198 as appear to the authority to be necessary in connection with the
grant of such permission, whether for giving effect to such conditions or otherwise.

Biodiversity

Section 40. Duty to conserve biodiversity
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

Every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent
with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity.

Conserving biodiversity includes, in relation to a living organism or type of habitat, restoring
or enhancing a population or habitat.

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010

Under the provisions of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010, the
Council has to ensure that development proposals will not have an adverse impact on the
integrity of a designated or candidate Special Area of Conservation (SAC), classified or
potential Special Protection Area (SPA), or listed Ramsar site and mitigation will be
required.

Any development involving the creation of new residential units within the District will have
such an impact because of the resulting cumulative recreational pressure on these sensitive
sites. Under Policy DM3 of the adopted Local Plan Part 2, the Council's general approach is
to recognise that the impact is adequately mitigated through the payment of contributions for
the provision of alternative recreational facilities, management measures and monitoring.

Equality

The Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in respect of certain protected
characteristics, namely: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity,
race, religion or beliefs and sex and sexual orientation. It places the Council under a legal
duty to have due regard to the advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers
including planning powers. The Committee must be mindful of this duty inter alia when
determining all planning applications. In particular the Committee must pay due regard to the
need to:



(1) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under the Act;

(2) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it; and

(3) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

Financial Considerations in Planning

Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Localism Act
2011 requires all reports dealing with the determination of planning applications to set out
how “local financial considerations” where they are material to the decision have been dealt
with. These are by definition only Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) payments and
government grant in the form of the New Homes Bonus.

New Forest District Council adopted a CIL charging schedule on 14 April 2014. The
implementation date for the charging schedule in 6 April 2015. The New Homes Bonus
Grant is paid to the Council by the Government for each net additional dwelling built in the
District. The amount paid depends on the Council tax banding of the new dwellings and
ranges between £798 and £2,304 per annum for a six year period. For the purposes of any
report it is assumed that all new dwellings are banded D (as we don’t actually know their
band at planning application stage) which gives rise to grant of £1152 per dwelling or £6,912
over six years.



Agenda Iltem 3a

Planning Development Control Committee 08 June 2016 Item 3 a

Application Number: 16/10231 Full Planning Permission

Site: THE OLD RAILWAY STATION, WOODGREEN ROAD,
BREAMORE SP6 2AB

Development: Use as holiday let

Applicant: Mrs Grainger

Target Date: 16/05/2016

1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Contrary to Parish Council view

2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Countryside
Historic Land Use

3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Core Strategy

Objectives

1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
4. Economy

7. The countryside

9. Leisure and recreation

Policies

CS1: Sustainable development principles

CS2: Design quality

CS3: Protecting and enhancing our special environment (Heritage and

Nature Conservation)
CS17:  Employment and Economic Development
CS19:  Tourism
CS21:  Rural Economy
CS24: Transport considerations
CS25: Developers contributions

Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document

DM1: Heritage and Conservation

DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites

DM13:  Tourism and visitor facilities

DM20: Residential development in the countryside

DM22: Employment development in the countryside

DM24:  Loss of rural employment sites, shops, public houses and community
facilities

Page 1



RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS

Mitigation Strategy for European Sites
Parking Standards

Breamore Village Design Statement
Conservation Areas

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
02/74096: Change of use to Use Class B1 (a) (b) and (c). Granted: 3 July 2002
PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Breamore Parish Council: strong objection on the following grounds:

e The building offers employment opportunities and a change of use
should be resisted;

e There has been no marketing since July 2015 which was at an inflated
price (£12.50 per square ft as opposed to current marketing of £7.75 per
square ft for similar properties);

¢ The building has not been adequately or appropriately marketed.

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS

No comments received

CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 New Forest National Park Authority: providing habitat mitigation

measures are secured, the Authority has no comments to make in
relation to this development

9.2 Land Drainage: no comment

9.3  Hampshire County Council Rights of Way: no objection

9.4  Ministry of Defence: no safeguarding objections to proposal

9.5  Environmental Health: no concerns with this application

9.6  Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: no objection subject to
condition

9.7 Conservation Officer: no concerns

9.8  Planning Policy: The use of the building for visitor accommodation may
indeed be appropriate and would support the tourist economy, but
sufficient justification will be needed in order to override the policy
presumption in favour of retaining the business use.

9.9 Estates and Valuation Manager: marketing exercise inadequate/ likely
difficulty in finding B1 use

Page 2



10

11

12

13

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
5 letters (4 households) received expressing the following concerns::

e The marketing exercise is questionable, undertaken by a local residential
agent,details were not widely distributed (i.e. it was not on Rightmove)
and the price was too high;

The Council should have limited regard to the marketing exercise;

e Why has the building not been marketed recently whilst still vacant?

e The Council refused similar application for the nearby dairy which now
supports a thriving business employing over a dozen people;

e The premises have not been advertised for sale;

There is a lack of parking;

e Concerns regarding safety of nearby children owing to 'strangers'
staying;

e Holiday makers might cause noise and disturbance;

Will be likely to increase house/ car insurance premiums;

e In January 2016, the National Park Authority refused planning permission
for the conversion of a Methodist Chapel at Woodgreen for reasons
including "beneficial community or business use would be more
acceptable” and "the level of activity generated by the proposed
development would have an unacceptable impact upon the character of
the countryside". Both carry equal weight in the assessment of this
planning application.

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
n/a
LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report this development
has a CIL liability of £4,208.42.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.
WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

e Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

e Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

e Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

Page 3



14

Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

In this case, the applicant was requested to submit details of the marketing
exercise which was undertaken which has now been assessed by the Estates
and Valuation Manager. The application also follows pre-application advice
sought by the applicant.

ASSESSMENT

Introduction

14.1

14.2

The application relates to the former Breamore railway station which
stands on the former Salisbury and Dorset junction railway. The station
has been restored while both platforms remain (in part) with the track
bed a public footpath. The site falls within the countryside and the
Breamore Conservation Area. The New Forest National Park boundary
runs along the former track bed.

The building currently provides a business use further to the grant of
planning permission 02/74096 (Change of use to Use Class B1 (a) (b)
and (c)); this was permitted on 3 July 2002. This application seeks a
change of use to a one bedroom holiday let. No external changes are
proposed.

Principle of Proposal

14.3

14.4

The application site comprises an existing employment use, albeit
vacant. Policy CS21 seeks to keep existing employment sites in rural
areas; policy DM24 elaborates on this policy and sets out the exceptions
where the loss of a rural employment site could be considered
appropriate. These exceptions include where alternative equivalent
provision is made; where the proposal would provide greater community
benefits for which there is a recognised local need; or where the current
use of the site or building has an adverse impact on the character and
amenities of the area. None of these exceptions are considered to apply
and therefore, the application has been advertised as a departure to

policy.

Policy DM13 allows for the development of tourist and visitor facilities in
certain circumstances, none of which would appear to apply in this case.

Page 4



14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

14.9

Notwithstanding the above, having regard to the merits of this proposal,
the Policy sections comments advise that use of the building for visitor
accommodation may be appropriate and would support the tourist
economy, but sufficient justification would be needed in order to override
the policy presumption in favour of retaining the business use.
Accordingly, the applicant needs to provide substantial evidence that the
existing use is no longer viable, or that extensive marketing at a
reasonable rent has taken place to seek an alternative business use.
Rural business premises tend to be quite popular and so particular
scrutiny should be afforded to the marketing of the premises.

In this instance, the applicant has submitted details of the marketing
exercise which has been undertaken. This advises that a local agent
was instructed to market the building in October 2013 with local adverts
also placed in local shops by the applicant. As a result, one person
rented desk space within the building for 15 months in 2013/ 2014.
Proposals for a dog grooming business (May 2014) and a business that
would have included demonstrations of hi-fi speakers (February 2015)
were rejected given the potential impact on neighbours. Further to this
marketing exercise, the applicant is of the understanding that the
building is too big for a home worker upgrading but too small for a larger
business.

Marketing with the estate agent was suspended in July 2014 and the
applicant thereafter attempted to sell the lease of the building via an
advert in the Salisbury Journal between August and October 2014. The
restriction on the use of the building is cited as the reason why this
advert proved unsuccessful.

Comments received from the Council's Estates and Valuation Manager
in respect of this marketing exercise state that the marketing undertaken,
particularly in recent times, has not been adequate given that a
mainstream commercial agent would need to be instructed who would
ensure adequate (and up to date) coverage (i.e. more widely advertised).
With regards to the pricing, the annual quoting rent is considered to be
within negotiating range of a reasonable market level but the selling price
set in October 2014 was out of proportion and set at a level that would
have been unlikely to attract B1 type users. Nevertheless, although
nothing can be concluded from past marketing, it is advised that it is
probably true that it remains difficult to find B1 occupiers in locations that
are remote from other business concerns therefore, on a rental basis it
could be expected to be difficult to maintain occupation on a consistent
basis and it could also be difficult to motivate a sale at current
commercial yields.

Notwithstanding the above shortcomings of the submitted marketing
exercise (albeit noting the anticipated difficulties in renting/ selling this
building for B1 purposes), the Council acknowledge that there is merit in
securing a new use for this heritage building whilst the amount of
employment floorspace that would be lost would be relatively modest. It
is also considered that this building, given its design and history, would
make an attractive holiday let while it is further acknowledged that use as
a holiday let would still offer a form of employment and would help to
support the local economy. These factors weigh in favour of the
proposal.

Page 5



14.10 In considering the sustainability of any refusal reason, it is also
necessary to have regard to Class O of the General Permitted
Development Order which allows the change of use of offices to dwelling
houses. Whilst this is not directly applicable given condition 7 of planning
permission 02/74096 (which restricts use of the building to Class B1 (a),
(b) and (c) uses), it highlights that in many cases, the Council are now
not able to resist the loss of rural employment space.

14.11 In weighing all of the above, it is considered that any associated refusal
reason having regarding to a lack of marketing would be more difficult to
sustain and for this reason, on balance, there is no associated objection
to this application.

Design/ Visual Amenity

14.12 The proposal does not propose any external changes to the building. It is
considered that the building has potential to be used as a holiday let and
that it could become an attractive place for visitors to take a holiday
given its countryside location close to Fordingbridge and other
settlements in the Avon valley; the history and design of the building will
also add special interest. Accordingly, there is no design/ visual amenity
based objection to the proposal.

Residential Amenity

14.13 The application site sits amongst a handful of residential properties with
the Old Station House opposite closest and with access in front of the
building leading to the recent residential development of Breamore Halt.
Historically the building would have received a higher number of visitors
while given its size (one-bedroom), only small groups could be
accommodated. Any impact on the neighbouring properties would
therefore be limited and, despite the concerns raised, there is no
objection on residential amenity grounds.

Highway Safety

14.14 The Highways Engineer has raised no objection to this application
subject to a condition requiring provision and retention of the car parking
spaces shown.

Habitats Mitigation

14.15 In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant adverse
effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation projects being
secured. In the event that planning permission is granted for the
proposed development, a condition is recommended that would prevent
the development from proceeding until the applicant has secured
appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to fund the Council's Mitigation
Projects or otherwise providing mitigation to an equivalent standard.

Page 6



Conclusion

14.16 In conclusion it is considered that the proposed change of use would be
acceptable in the circumstances of this case with no adverse implications
to the character and appearance of the area or neighbouring properties.

Human Rights

14.17 In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the
rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and
Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it is
recognised that there may be an interference with these rights and the
rights of other third parties, such interference has to be balanced with the
like rights of the applicant to develop the land in the way proposed. In
this case it is considered that the protection of the rights and freedoms of
the applicant outweigh any possible interference that may result to any
third party.

CIL Summary Table

Description of |GIA New GIA Existing |GIA Net CIL Liability
Class Increase
Dwelling houses 50.47 0 50.47 £4,208.42 *

15. RECOMMENDATION

Grant Subject to Conditions

Proposed Conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The building the subject of this permission shall not be occupied by any one
person for more than one month in any calendar year.

Reason: To ensure the building is not used as a permanent dwelling
which would be contrary to Policy DM20 of the Local Plan for
the New Forest District outside the National Park. (Part 2: Sites
and Development Management).

Page 7



Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 2005 and the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 and the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (Amendment) Order 2015 or any
subsequent re-enactments thereof, the development hereby approved shall
be used as a holiday let only and for no other use purposes, whatsoever,
including any other purpose in Class C3 of the Town and Country Planning
(Use Classes) Order 2005 or any subsequent re-enactment thereof, without
express planning permission first being obtained.

Reason: To ensure the building is not used as a permanent dwelling
which would be contrary to Policy DM20 of the Local Plan for
the New Forest District outside the National Park. (Part 2: Sites
and Development Management).

The car parking area for two vehicles shown on the submitted Site Plan/
Block Plan shall be retained solely for the use of the holiday let
accommodation hereby approved.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of
highway safety and in accordance with Policy CS2 and CS24
of the Local Plan for the New Forest outside of the National
Park (Core Strategy).

No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation of the
impact of the development on the New Forest and Solent Coast European
Nature Conservation Sites have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority, and the local planning authority has
confirmed in writing that the provision of the proposed mitigation has been
secured. Such proposals must:

(a) Provide for mitigation in accordance with the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites SPD, adopted in June
2014 (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in
force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;

(b) Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to
be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for
the ongoing maintenance and monitoring of any Suitable Alternative
Natural Green Spaces which form part of the proposed mitigation
measures together with arrangements for permanent public access
thereto.

(c) The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject
to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated
before any development is carried out in order to ensure that
there will be no adverse impacts on the New Forest and Solent
Coast Nature Conservation Sites in accordance with Policy
DM3 of the Local Plan Part 2 and the New Forest District
Council Mitigation Strategy for European Sites Supplementary
Planning Document.

Page 8



6. The development permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

Site Plan/ Block Plan; Elevations; drg no. rev 00; Existing Floor Plan; drg no.
rev 00; Proposed Floor Plan; drg no. rev 00

Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision of the development.

Notes for inclusion on certificate:

1. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
takes a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve,
whenever possible, a positive outcome by giving clear advice to applicants.

In this case, the applicant was requested to provide the marketing exercise
that was undertaken and follows pre-application advise sought by the
applicant and follows a pre-application discussions whereby the applicant
was advised that this proposed change of use would be likely to be
supported.

2. In discharging condition No. 5 above the Applicant is advised that
appropriate mitigation is required before the development is commenced,
either by agreeing to fund the Council’s Mitigation Projects or otherwise
providing mitigation to an equivalent standard. Further information about
how this can be achieved can be found here
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16478/

Further Information:

Major Team
Telephone: 023 8028 5345 (Option 1)

Page 9



‘9|e0s
0} 89 JOU ||IM }I ‘JouJBiul 8y}
woJy ueld siyy Bunuud 3 "g'N

0SCl‘L °leds

Llslns

LeCoL/9lL
alowesalg

peoy usaibpoop
uonels Aemjiey p|o
eg ON way|

910¢ sunr

23)WWo) [04U0)
jusawdojanaq Buiuueld

vd. €¥OS

1sINYpuA]

Hno) saus|ddy

|1oUN0Y JoISI[ ¥s8lo4 MaN
Jo3uo) Bulpjing pue Buluue|d
Jebeue|y eo1nIeS

wools) piAeq

3N°A0B}SaIoMaU MMM
000G 8208 €20 ‘1Bl
TIDNNOD LDO1Y¥lsid

15910 MION]

o

\ sabenon

aBpug

wied

uonels

Aireq plO 8yL
sabenon weH \:
. / wied I alowesig
oINS A uonels \\.. 7
h ,\ / /\.ﬂ
//,. / \.., \ /
S / /
- / 9snoH
m/w ~d uonels
{ /
_ hio
L S

wied

s,usal

/ o P , __eBeyoo Aiteg
\ ~J 2yl

\ o = /

\
T

Z<

SO
180d PIO

Damnma- 10
rayc 1uU




Agenda Item 3b

Planning Development Control Committee 08 June 2016 Item3b

Application Number: 16/10291 Full Planning Permission

Site: 124 STATION ROAD, FORDINGBRIDGE SP6 1DG
Development: Two-storey side & rear extension to provide 2 additional flats;
bin/cycle stores
Applicant: Crownshade Ltd
Target Date: 10/05/2016
1 REASON FOR COMMITTEE CONSIDERATION
Affordable housing negotiations and contrary to Town Council view (in part).
2 DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND OTHER CONSTRAINTS
Built up area
3 DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Core Strategy
Objectives
1. Special qualities, local distinctiveness and a high quality living environment
3. Housing
6. Towns, villages and built environment quality
Policies
Core Strategy
CS2: Design quality
CS10: The spatial strategy
CS15: Affordable housing contribution requirements from developments
CS24: Transport considerations
CS25: Developers contributions
Local Plan Part 2 Sites and Development Management Development Plan
Document _
DM3: Mitigation of impacts on European nature conservation sites
4 RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GOVERNMENT ADVICE

Section 38 Development Plan
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
National Planning Policy Framework

Page 11




10

RELEVANT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE AND DOCUMENTS
SPD - Fordingbridge Town Design Statement

SPD - Mitigation Strategy for European Sites
SPD - Parking Standards

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 Roof alterations and dormers to form flat (78682) Granted with conditions
on the 22nd August 2003

6.2  Convert first floor flat to 2 flats, alterations to fenestration (77829)
Granted with conditions on the 2nd June 2003

6.3  Erect a pair of semi-detached dwellings and associated parking for
dwellings and existing flats at 124 Station Road (76143) Granted with
conditions on the 31st March 2003

6.4  Dwelling with detached garage and parking for existing flats (68908)
Granted with conditions on the 9th June 2000

6.5 Alterations and conversion of ground floor to form flats (61823) Granted
with conditions on the 19th August 1997

PARISH / TOWN COUNCIL COMMENTS

Fordingbridge Town Council: Recommend refusal under PAR4 as the proposal
would be overdevelopment of the site, creating further parking issues and loss
of amenity to neighbouring properties. Members considered that an on site
assessment should be carried out regarding the existing problems of parking on
the highway and associated danger to road users this would be made worse
with no increase in on-site parking provision.

COUNCILLOR COMMENTS

None

CONSULTEE COMMENTS

9.1 Hampshire County Council Highway Engineer: No objection subject to
condition

9.2 Land Drainage: No objection subject to condition
9.3  Councils Valuer: The submitted viability appraisal is acceptable

9.4  Environmental Health (historic land use): No objection subject to
standard contaminated land conditions

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
2 letters of objection concerned over car parking and access, loss of light,

impact on outlook and privacy. Overdevelopment of the site. Lack of amenity
space.

Page 12




11

12

13

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
No relevant considerations
LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

If this development is granted permission and the dwellings built, the Council will
receive 2304 in each of the following six years from the dwellings' completion,
and as a result, a total of £6912 in government grant under the New Homes
Bonus will be received.

From the 6 April 2015 New Forest District Council began charging the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new residential developments.

Based on the information provided at the time of this report this development
has a CIL liability of £6,670.77.

Tables setting out all contributions are at the end of this report.
WORKING WITH THE APPLICANT/AGENT

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework and Article 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, New Forest District Council
take a positive and proactive approach, seeking solutions to any problems
arising in the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, whenever
possible, a positive outcome.

This is achieved by

e Strongly encouraging those proposing development to use the very
thorough pre application advice service the Council provides.

e Working together with applicants/agents to ensure planning applications
are registered as expeditiously as possible.

e Advising agents/applicants early on in the processing of an application
(through the release of a Parish Briefing Note) as to the key issues
relevant to the application.

e Updating applicants/agents of issues that arise in the processing of their
applications through the availability of comments received on the web or
by direct contact when relevant.

e Working together with applicants/agents to closely manage the planning
application process to allow an opportunity to negotiate and accept
amendments on applications (particularly those that best support the
Core Strategy Objectives) when this can be done without compromising
government performance requirements.

e Advising applicants/agents as soon as possible as to concerns that
cannot be dealt with during the processing of an application allowing for
a timely withdrawal and re-submission or decision based on the scheme
as originally submitted if this is what the applicant/agent requires.

e When necessary discussing with applicants/agents proposed conditions
especially those that would restrict the use of commercial properties or
land when this can be done without compromising government
performance requirements.

No pre application advice was sought by the applicant and there are objections

in principle to an extension to provide additional residential units which could not
by overcome by negotiation.

Page 13



14

ASSESSMENT

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

The site comprises a large detached two and a half storey building which
lies in a prominent location along Station Road fronting onto a small
roundabout. The existing building is a relatively attractive building
constructed from brick with a slate roof with a simple pitched roof, flat
roof dormer windows and front bay windows. The property contains five
flats with car parking provided to the side of a pair of semi detached
houses at No 124a. The application property sits on a restricted plot with
a small outside area to the rear used for secured storage by the
occupiers and walkways to the side of the building.

The character of the area is mixed comprising commercial and
residential properties. To the east of the site is a business
predominantely used for offices and storage and the premises has a long
single storey building that bounds the side and part rear boundary of the
site. There is a residential property to the rear of the site and No 10
Rookwood Gardens, which has its rear garden backing onto the site. To
the west is a pair of semi-detached dwellings at Nos 124a and 124b
Station Road. Opposite the site is a large two storey office building with
semi detached dwellings to the east of the roundabout.

The proposal is to construct a two storey extension to create two
residential flats. The proposed extension would be sited in the north east
corner of the site currently used as an outside area and storage space
for the residents. The proposed extension would be set back from the
front of the existing building and would extend the north east corner of
the building. The proposal also involves a new cycle and bin store.

In assessing the effect on the character and appearance of the area, at
one time the existing residential building sat in a more spacious setting
however the building has now been converted into five residential flats
and most of the land has been developed for housing and car parking.
To the rear of the site new housing has been built which is close to the
rear of the site and an employment building wraps around the north and
east boundary. The site is now very restricted with limited space around
the building with only a narrow strip of greenery to the west of the
building and a graveled area with storage to the rear.

The proposal would result in the loss of most of the land to the rear of
the existing building and part of the greenery to the west being lost. The
proposed building would be built up to two boundaries of the site further
restricting access and space around the building. Although the space to
the rear and side does not appear to be frequently used as amenity
space, it does create space around the building for the residents.
Accordingly it is considered that the proposed development would be an
overdevelopment of the site that would materially increase the amount of
built development on the site, reducing the already constrained amenity
space and adding to the uncharacteristically cramped appearance of the
overall development. Given the building is already used for five
residential flats and the development built around the site, it is
considered that the site has limited scope for additional development.

Visually the existing building is a substantial 'Edwardian' dwelling. Its

simple detached form and appearance with small gaps to the side make
a positive impact on the street. Although the employment building to the

Page 14



14.7

14.8

14.9

14.10

14.11

14.12

14.13

east differs in form and design, the gap between the buildings and their
different styles sit comfortably in their setting in the street scene and
appear as two different land uses.

Although the proposed extension would be set back on the building, it
would still be viewed from the road closing the gap between the two
buildings and coming very close to the neighbouring employment
building. The design of the extension does little to complement the
existing building with its lower eaves line, shallow roof and narrow form,
and would appear disjointed and awkward when compared with the
character of the existing building and the adjacent development.

With regard to residential amenity, the proposed extension would be
sited close to the neighbouring property to the rear at No 10. The
proposed windows have been designed to avoid any direct overlooking
to No 10, however the physical relationship of the extension is poor. No
10 stands at a higher ground level and their views currently look onto the
rear of both 124 and the houses 124a/124b. The proposed extension
would bring additional built development adjacent to No 10 further
enclosing their outlook with buildings which would be unacceptable.
Accordingly, it is considered that by virtue of its scale rising to two
storeys and its close proximity to the boundary, the proposed extension
would appear visually imposing and further enclose the outlook from the
rear of No 10.

While concerns have been expressed in relation to car parking, and
access, the Highway Authority does not raise any objections in relation to
car parking or impact on public highway safety.

The proposed development requires an affordable housing contribution
of £30,460. The application is accompanied by a viability appraisal which
states that if the full affordable housing contribution is made, the
development will be unviable. The submitted viability assessment
concludes that a reduced contribution of £2494 can be offered towards
affordable housing.

The Councils Valuer has assessed the appraisal and concludes that if
the target Affordable Homes contribution is included within the appraisal,
the Residential Development Land Value falls below the threshold Site
Value and accordingly it is reasonable to accept a complete waiver in the
level of the Affordable Homes financial contribution

In accordance with the Habitat Regulations 2010 an assessment has
been carried out of the likely significant effects associated with the
recreational impacts of the residential development provided for in the
Local Plan on both the New Forest and the Solent European Nature
Conservation Sites. It has been concluded that likely significant adverse
effects cannot be ruled out without appropriate mitigation projects being
secured. In the event that planning permission is granted for the
proposed development, a condition is recommended that would prevent
the development from proceeding until the applicant has secured
appropriate mitigation, either by agreeing to fund the Council's Mitigation
Projects or otherwise providing mitigation to an equivalent standard.

In conclusion it is considered that the proposed extension would be an

overdevelopment of the site and visually would unacceptably detract
from the character and appearance of the area and would have an

Page 15



adverse impact on the adjacent neighbouring property. Whilst the
Councils Valuer accepts a complete waiver of the affordable housing
contribution, this does not override the other matters.

14.14

In coming to this recommendation, consideration has been given to the

rights set out in Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and
Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to peaceful enjoyment of
possessions) of the European Convention on Human Rights. Whilst it is
recognised that this recommendation, if agreed, may interfere with the
rights and freedoms of the applicant to develop the land in the way
proposed, the objections to the planning application are serious ones
and cannot be overcome by the imposition of conditions. The public
interest and the rights and freedoms of neighbouring property owners
can only be safeguarded by the refusal of permission.

Section 106 Contributions Summary Table

Proposal:

Type of Contribution

NFDC Policy
Requirement

Developer Proposed
Provision

Difference

Affordable Housing

No. of Affordable
dwellings

Financial Contribution

£30,460

-£30,460

Habitats Mitigation

Financial Contribution

CIL Summary Table

Description of Class

GIA New

GIA Net

GIA Existing CIL Liability

Increase

Dwelling houses

80 80 £6,670.77 *

15.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

Reason(s) for Refusal:

1.

The proposed development would result in an overdevelopment of the site

that would materially increase the amount of built development, reducing the

already constrained amenity space and adding to the uncharacteristically
cramped appearance of the overall development. In addition, by virtue of its
siting, scale, and design, the proposed extension would appear awkward

and disjointed with the character and form of the existing building,and would

unacceptably close gap with the neighbouring building that would have a
negative impact on the street scene to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the area. For this reason, the proposal would be contrary to
policy CS2 of the Core Strategy for the New Forest<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>